RAJYA SABHA [9 August, 2001]

SHRI CIPANKAR MUKHERJEE (West Bengal): Sir, | also associate
myseif with the sentiments expressed by the hon. Member, Shri Mirza Abdul
Rashid.

SHRI FALI S. NARIMAN (Nominated): Sir, | also associate myseif
with the sentiments expressed by the hon. Member.

DISCUSSION ON THE STATEMENT OF PRIME MINISTER
Recent summit-level talks held between India and Pakistan in Agra -contd

SHRI KM, SAIFULLAH {Andhra Pradesh): Sir, with regard to the
Indo-Pak Surnmit, there was a hot discussion in connection with its
appreciation on the one side and its criticism on the other side. | would like
to say that instead of appreciation and criticism of this Summit, there must
be a common intention to safeguard Jammu and Kashmir. Whatever the
Congress party has said, is not a wrong thing. They are also for the safety
of J&K. They have pointed out some lacunae. So, | come to the conclusion
that the entire House has a common intention to safeguard Jammu and
Kashmir, which is part of India. Some people have appreciated the Indo-Pak
Summit at Agra, some have criticised it. Whatever it may be, it was not that
the Prime Minister or the Government of India had requested General
Musharraf to pay a visit to India. He voluntarily came bhere. When he
volunteered himself to come to India, the Government hesitated to some
gextent whether to invite him or not when terrorism is still existing. Finally, it
locks that the Prime Minister was compelled to invite General Musharraf in
order to send a message to the whole world that the Indians are not
against the reformative theory. We not only stick to the deterrent theory but
also ready to accept the reformative thecry, There was nothing wrong ih
inviting him, The Prime Minister, on behalf of the Government of India, has
inviled General Musharraf with a bonafide intention, But General Musharraf
has come here with a malafide intention for the Agra visit and other wvisits
and has gone away after instigating the terrorists here. | would like to refer
to what General Musharraf has said in India. Ha said: * It is not a dispute. It
is a freedom struggle,” and immediately be said, “let us forget it. It is not a
post- mortem.” When you say it is not a post mortem, you are not
supposed to mention the earlier thing. He has gone a littie further and said:
"We are remembering Bangladesh. India has interfered in the internal
matters of Bangladesh and supported them., We are hurt.® That goes to
show that he is still vindictive. He is not for a compromise. But we have
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invited him just 10 give a message to the whole worid that we are for the
compromise. |f Pakistan wants to fight, we are ready to tollow the deterrent
theory. But, whatever it may be, being a military man, General Musharraf
talked about freedom in a democratic country like India, whereas, in
Pakistan, one Prime Minister was axecuted, one othar was ex-
communicated from Pakistan o Saudi Arabia, and you have no freedom in
Pakistan. He made a laughing stock of himself by talking about freedom in
India. We have got freedom in India. We can accuse the Prime Minister of
India, we can accuse the President of India. We have got freedom of
speech, guaranteed by the Indian Consitution, to express our views, but
within the limits. So, when this freedom is thers, General Musharral was not
supposed to takk about freedom and other things,

And, by and by, he has gone to the extent of saying "It is freedom
for struggle!® Does it not amount to instigating abetment to the terrorists?
Does it not amount to giving encouragement to the taerrorists to fight against
the innocent people, targeting a particular community? For being a true
Muslim, Quran preaches non-violence. If you are a Muslim, you should not
have instigated violence. Cluran speaks, in Arabic words, "Rabbual Alamin®.
That means, He is God for all, not for one community. Quran never says
He is a God of Muslims onty. He is a God-of all humanity. In such case,
being a frue Muslim, he was not supposed to say in India, on our soil, that
that is a freedom struggle when the innocant peopie are being murdered. If
they had got the guts, they couid have fought with our Indian Army, Why
should they go to the railway platforms and kill the innocent people? Being
a true Muslim, being the Head of a true Islamic country, he never preaches
that. We have 10 condemn i, all the political parties collectivety.
Irrespactive of our political gains, et us fight in the elaections, but not with
this common intention. So, he is on the wrong sids.

Finally, Sir, | only want to say that when the Prime Minister has
called him, of course, there is some lacuna on the part of the Government.
They should have made some preliminary exercise. What is that exercisa?
Exchange or release of some war prisoners or criminals, and for
extinguishing the fire of terrorism in Jammu and Kashmir, a brief agenda
should have been there 10 be looked into; then, we should have to sit for
the Summit. That was a little mistake. By the by, we cannot say that the
Summit failed. The newspapers reported: "The talks have failed.” It is not
that the Government of India failea, but the talks failed. You cannot
interpret “"the talks failed® as “"the Government of India failed®. 1t is only the
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talks that had failed. It is quite natural. Even a common can presume the
burning sensation of the Jammu & Kashmir problem. Can it be solved in
one day? No, it cannot be solved. It is a perpetual thing. We are getting
together in that sense. | make a request to the Government, | just submit
to the Government, to follow three methods. One, you follow, as per
jurisprudence, the deterrent theory, 2:2. That is the deterrent theory, The
next is the reformative theory. If you come for friendship, we are ready for
friendship. And the third is, you must have a propaganda saying that we
arg for freedom, we are for everything if you are not to interfere in our
peaceful country,

Finally, Mr. Chairman, Sir, | want 10 point out a little mistake,
irespective of whather the Government has applied its mind or not, for the
time being, that it was the duty of the Government 1o have called all the
Musilim MPs of both the Rajya Sabha and the Lok Sabha and present all of
us before the President of Pakistan so that, through the media, the whole
world should have known that the Muslims who have 35 MPs do exist in
India, and that they need not teach us freedom; and ours is the second
largest Muslim population in the worid. The first country having that is
Indonesia, and the second is India. "You, Pakistan, are nol like Andhra
Pradesh that you will teach us. We are here. We are Muslims. We are
morg than the strength of Pakistan., You are talking about the freedom| All
the Muslims who have settied down at Karachi, after leaving India, in 1947,
are not happy. They are treated as second-class citizens there., | have got
some of my relations in Karachi; they are not happy there. And you are
talking about freedom! Whenever | telephone them, they say, "Being a
Muslim, you have become a Member of Parliament, but we can't do
anything here! You are happy over therel® We are very proud of being in
India. We are not supposed to leave the State of Jammu and Kashmir. |
say Mohammed Ali Jinnah had committed a wrong in bifurcating Pakistan
from India. By doing all these things, he had created a separate nation,
Now they are asking for the separation of Jammu and Kashmir!

Jammu and Kashmir goes. Pakistan goes. Everything goes. But
the minorities will be neghlgent in India and their problem will be there, We
must be united here. We must fight for India. We bhave got linguistic
States. We have got different castes and religions. We fight each other, we
compromise and we live together, Gen. Musharral need not advise us. [f
the Government had invited the Muslim MPs, we would have told him that.
You should have invited us. | don't know why you have not called us. Why
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did you suspect us? You should have called us. It is not that you alone
fought for independence. The Muslims also fought for independence. In
the Indo-Pak war one Muslim, Shri Hamid, died. The Muslims also
sacrificed their fives. You should have called us, all the Muslim MPs frcm
Rajya Sabha and Lok Sabha, and we should have gone and projected our
stand. Our Omar Abdullah was there. He was also not focussed on the
TV. | didn't see him on the TV whenever | saw the TV. You must focus on
the Muslim MPs. We are not satisfied. For the sake of India, we are not
satisfied. The Muslim countries in the whole world would have seen through
the media that the Muslims were safe here and whatever Paksitan was
accusing of India was false. You should have availed of that opportunity. |
request the Government, whoever rules the country, that they must focus
on the Muslim MPs. You can have good bilateral relationships and good
business relations with the Muslim countries, f you focus on the Muslim
MPs. Why do you hesitate 1o focus on the Muslim MPs? | welcome the
step taken by the Prime Minisler by calling Gen. Musharraf for a visit, A
good message has gona to the world that our Prime Minister was not
adamant; he was ready for talks, and it was Gen. Musharraf who was
adamant and went away in the middle of the might and he was wrong.
Shri Manmohan Singh stated, "We recommend the continuation of talks".
When the whole House authorises you to continue the talks and, if you are
invited to visit Pakistan, go to Pakistan, sit with them and find out the
possibilities to solve the issue. But don't get ralaxed by these talks. Be
alert in Jammu and Kashmir and send a much stronger force there. On the
ong hand, you follow the reformative theory and, on the other, you follow
the deterrent theory. Under any circumstance, | think the whole House is
one on this issue. We are not going to leave Jammu and Kashmir. There
are five perennial rivers. We cannot leave such important States like Jarmmu
and Kashmir, Punjab, etc., and live here without those States. | welcome
the statement of the Prime Minister. There are some mistakes. | think the
Government will rectify them in future. We authorise him, on behalf of our
party, to carry on with the dialogue with hope, without caring for criticisms.

st dlarre fam (Gow wew) - gl Sft, e ¥ oum WSl s s fREd
i A oifde ¥ A arroe o@w e B ) ot B fav m amita
P @R WET S A Ge i A AR A B i 2o A & 4 B2t & #
JHS TUE A M| e ¥ @ IAH 950 WA g ol I WEwydd Hen
Fara | 39 fFErEv Y oE aved &1 d@ 911 YRy WWeR $Edl ) Y o a6
"B Fidy N A T @, o 7% ' T F0 Ed we vfyem
MR MR W F AT o R w IEA @ 5 w9 od 0 99 I A

235



RAJYA SABHA [0 August, 2001}

AR &, &dl f 979 T B AR &) FE O AAENY T, AQ WRG grIadd T8
HEA TTET BN | G WE YRA A U & A% FEHYO BT 6 aR & R & IR IN
Tpe wam T8 e T geo § 1w FeiEoaa @ T an 9”@ 369
wWEN &% @1 s Feiaw-ga 37 F o A gt o R @ ow fwmew A
fad, dues! A for, REns) 3 B @ o' O f oua @ o9 AT b e
e 7€ B W aE FEd & W R g7 Feed Peaar 8 & awad & aga aiftw
2, wvewie Wwe B afes ol A Five Fva 3 P gEe age warer 9nlfig
T HEh wifdv) a7 aron @t A T 9 9 R  eR F yaaal, S

we o ¢, g wwer Bl & 9 o Afeda @, awi A smd.on.and. A, TE
¥ e el &t o) fPolas ffim Rk s T 9w zwm B &, @
W qEEl § ot B € R oE R e ohwon Foarg of dan & SR
HIFT A e frmr ) wReR A aen fem & w1 @adfe F6OY, o T
@ waify nitg & v v & e @, wmiE qieY IR @) e
frgen & @ fAger 29 o= W & - eEfes R geen ol & srenw A1 gEd
qadia A o Fo e e w@a & R T Yorsw aares @ s ff aF
Frat | oES WO ¥ TR ¥ WHdl ¥ o "hd 23 ¥ @ aveaE 9 udW
TRE Fd @ % e Rraw gal 3 g Rem 4 o, gw g@ Ram A a| w73
IR 75 f FE & A adfen v@ AT | 9= g R w5 @R e, e
Wrg & eV WA | T | W o [ 5 i @ ave =4

OZMEEY } TE FH WA T A 0F Fd a3 & 9 D A A ow i IR
W TET WAYTH A AW AT @ IH Y T TE FAN 99 T8 ¥ FFAHS 9@,
agi & g . vg.urg. R FEvuedt A @ ww rar avi IR a1 v frvedgw By
R R ww qa R % 9w 9% 9-FvR § 999 W qaEa am g agedt 2,
9 & T AA # FH qadia Ad HEN | A WE-AE 9 TR-uig gard
3 Reflu gemiger ® qRaS YR A 3G TR TEa FEl 4 AR gwd I A
faan | ol anfigy @ 77 #09 @ @ 7' @1d 92 B 6 uam R o 5 g8 Bt
AU IR RATT W &N AW TE IR T 7 A Feo & I
IR TR afsewr e & @@ gan wm &) w9 owR o € 5 wwa @
ffogae & fRrgla W g o) g9 fiugare & wfor 78 fFa o

gj:ﬁﬁ

236



[8 August, 2001} RAJYA SABHA

o & der fem | ot & oo W W v $ Righn @1 e
fra afF ax feorg & Rrgia o« s A am §)1 w FRW IF oR-FEIR
faaro &1 %=1 gam Uk Al &1 TR AR # 993wk & wewn 3 G
Rea-v3 o7 am e e, 1 A 72w aw O 1, we @@ B
foeg gu &) T TR AR ¥ FTER -l wRG @ A B T, 99
v g0l dfeT % feam @ fRvrsgas @ g & orw -k anw i
AT Tuiel 3| g% T4 arom &, O S g W & A S s oo
Fd I N IFH TE, AW [IRE A oE 5 offews g &
T B & T WE B A4 Al IFN FI avE A Fh #
AT i qr ae & 5 e ot vE v d Ry wa £ | oA T

ti BX-ArE waem & I ¥W gawa W # | Y wE g @ aRwn ¥
oY) F8 oA F7 54 aul A g &) AfFA @ 2 O F aM T
I ITd Q) I B Y, AR iR w4 IR
R T, gt o Gt I o ud @ o 4 0 afFaE R g 1=
A gr Frviw amRe T ) T T @ e o) awt S waraEn &)
q, 1 giffew & R ® 2 IR @ Th A 59w G@d w@

8 A

114

5_
gf
z
249
GALm

4
3
3
M
7
3
-
]
g
3
g
agi o
SEAH

oo gamr & f6 wrg ot & aw v & tﬁ:‘a‘lmﬁﬁu‘sm

Bivc ¥gd wel &, gaferg sreon B fo wwghar o= faw

weaErr fag ¥, e R 3 @ @-d9 Tt § o ey s
' 2

s

4 A

v wva & faas swiwAz & uE e a7 T g g i &,

i € s 3z aeae @ 9uE aavE N we v aea #) gafee e e

* a7 & 5 el  wr ra g A B oawe R ofewm $

Hau & B A, JE B S| R 9% 980 7 §RAIPRE AlS W '

W T WRd 5o ufdrenadl 74 § o 5 3 Wy w1 W 9 iR

] A AN T P wEfEEar -6 TF @ & e >
R g FW gL, ¥H el IR Ao §,

TR T T B R wdY g1 guv waa ¥ A o geriine gu o aE
. ¥, e Wrot §, R d@weHi A, i # g o

¥ gz fFaq gt wa &, 99 DS wgd FON PO ki

ﬂﬁﬂﬁiﬁi

13
ig
13
|

%

3 3MRT A qgd 9fgd ATPIE U9 PHbE ¥ Us Hale gEr HE W
qrerdid oY $ aR H IR guT T @ IES SR A NG X FE f R F

237



RAJIYA SABHA [0 August, 2001]

A FEN A 3R w2 A aeRard 813 @y B gt e an andd
® e F fae R wm-wme) @ SwRa A8 &) g8 9w JHE o
| q A ¥ arg A A e ofewE IR 98 |8 gama T8 v
| 4 T AR IEEIW 2| AW @A ¥ RaAe ameg wiEha A & AR
M fRgwas & gy IR P 9PN o T IE AR ) 9 TE
A IR E & U W A e as TEl A v g s @ P
I WY WK g0 S T gl A A e o gEd @yl § 6 e
WEaE] ved & ufdeE & s 99 Celicd @ o) 38 W e | ' B agd
et ove Frifa 7R &) g " W A 1Y 9adt &, 39S w6 g9ea A A
# HEN TEM| IF Food U Qd 9gr A e § B 21 A e |
IEM 4 A A@-q9 F U A9 A WG X FF G T30 7896 A FE 6 amg
|l @ F O, A A @ A A iR e A o A8 @ ad ) wé d
ag A8l 47 §H | T@ gan fch ff, I8 §9g aga oW g ¥4 9] OFR & AR ue

!
5

1744

R s & mw wdie § I8 am 5 gt el @ anua’mgmaﬁ
R A6, W9 A qR A T8 T §FA | ITF T T 9 7 @) 7E ;W@ R
s v &, 77 6 e T & e suwm fAfea aef gx &) wwe & Pear
gt 5 T8 )} §W @ arieoww waE 5 f frem dieae wrar &1 e ot am
WA TIE WIEd FERFAR § $F M, R W Frm @) guSt seearc gddh d
e 3, # afdwar A 7¢ 16 wew | 7w aE @ el 1 W@ A adia gg, e
& A IelE 98 A P g weda B tar & ganl 1ga AR dEet A 39 A4 1w
foran, Frad & oz foan o f& g7 aadla & <& & od g g & Fga St
G ¥ 1 g8 @ foan f aedls 9 ' oo adt aga 9 weam weh Y wa
A e & w1 39 FEda T o ) a9 @) e
78 IR ¥ TfFeEm & wEE A IEE HeeiHa F A B waw A
9w 8 ) TAAfIE el o AT 1 4RT WER A 99 I ¥
g &8 U f% GXeRr B g wde A€ @ & sl aed & oot gRaa Aaed
Ffia fdm 9 ok ol 9Ee 39X B wRa &) AR Q ' 99 Q) ER
g 38 od W aEd ! aadt ) oF anw ofdwna &) v d dAda nmm
o @ WEed & wrd @ 9Ed €1 BRI @ A gtaa &
mm%#%nmﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁamglmmasmnaﬂ#

e
&igiai;a

21 IEE O3 TEG AN ER € W & | I B v & gam & offan € 2
T T AR WHR F A ded @ & | wfdam gima 9 o-daay wEa
e & 3R 99 @ F¢ & Fifdw # ) a9a ¥ W9 waa AT @ 30 U 99 WRd
TR F U A AT g a N aF g ad & o i st A R= &
forg, @ g6 gz @ 8 2 - "wEEda AW e W@ | AfdE v @ @

238



[o August, 2001] RAJYA SABHA

1.00 P.M.

TR firar gt 3w Roea & e 59 IR R gEd | aRa WER 4 1E
o frm fF @ 88 & o o R 9, sswdh et @ v

g8 S el o) SEF AR A T g S AA g & A FRe W
@ po I FE, e paRm B ) e ave A @ ga e, @
WE A 78 AR a9t &) RAedaw & gaon off, @ ave A T I @Al @)
GEBY, AT FAN BT A O & 5 H W v A

& A ARd d o PR gvg @t g € ' mi JiESe 2R 2 A
T gEilm Sar S s e ) s A da @ & foa s A &5
am @ g &, 5w wE A e € 36 ave o go ad f i Ren waw Raw
W gai 75 A TfEe A adR ¥ @ sRa A df&kai gad ff - dfEE afiw
qRradt A o, 77 & g wEw §, T® gufoe 5 asi aw awnifte € -

"ZFE A9 YT 9 2R I, W9 7 Nl F ART a9
qE @M N7 39 a3 9 e 9aag deam 4,

s vF & ¥ figwr, am 1w ¥ figem
TE I o aifdEwr |

3 wfw gt & v &1 @ wom & A @) Apge W

ey, §w re d e v €, TR AR o Nt Raa & 0 ¥
IR & s s A & fo oft ST armen €

3 anht 39 didm T8 off, e wnEh dfere 3@ &) 2 @ a5 @
T AT g A AP 0 0F g F A F AR W 1@ aEa §)
IuF g & oy wE @ M T Uk a o € F and e d s anfie
T, METT @A, 969 @F Jd drl o Roe A sl ww hm a3,
s F8 A i €1 wd ¥ IR A 99 JEeEH 4@ FARR B AN ]I A
TR Té usHt, vER & IR A ugd M) aw v g &) A oI § @9 9
g gl S i cfiad M &) sngmas Al A ¢@
e ¥ W% FE pen A @ F gEN we ufrwem gEfR @ 2w A ik
gEifo ufea™ & <@ &, a® 9% wus 4 a1 S|

MR. CHAIRMAN: Just one minute. Hon. Members, we have
22 speakers on the Discussion. The list of speakers is t0 be completed
today so that the Prime Minister may reply tomorrow on the 10" August,
2001 after the Question Hour. Today the House may sit through lunch and
continug with the discussion and resume it at 4.00 p.m. and conclude it
today - itself after the statement by the Home Minister on Jammu and
Kashmir at 2.00 p.m. Is it all nght?
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SOME HON. MEMBERS : Yes, Sir.
[THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOURI) in the Chair]

SHRI P.N. SIVA (Tam# Nadu} . Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, | thank you
for this opportunity. Sir, at the outset, | am compelled 10 disagree with the
views expressed by the Cpposition Parties that Agra Summit was a failure
on charges that the Government was not prepared and it went with an
unstructured agenda to the Summit, Sir, a match that ends in draw
cannot be declared as a victory or advantage 1o any one side as our
Opposition leaders described yesterday. One must realise that the ice
was frozen in the refationship between the two countries after the Kargil
war. There was a need for beginning the talks. | feel the Agra Summit
broke the ice by way of beginning talks and that oo by bringing in the
person who was the architect of the Kargil war and the wrecker of the
Delhi-Lahore bus diplomacy thereby making known 10 the world that India is
interested in sattling the issues through psace process. in the course of
upholding the national interests, there is no room for individual egos and
false prestige. Sir, | want to emphasise two things, The first is that India
did go to the Summit wel-prepared. It was General Musharraf who
changed his stand subsequently. The team which accompanied the Prime
Minister comprised the Minister of Externat Affairs and Defence, the Finance
Ministar, and the Commerce Minister, which itself implied that the
Government had the intention of discussing with Pakistan all things relating
to finance, military operations, trade and even, of course, the cross-border
terrorism.  But it was General Musharraf who changed the entire situation,
Our Government also showed encouraging gestures even before the Summit
by the ceasefire initiative, releasing the prisoners who were in the Indian jails
and by appointing Mr, K. C. Pant as interlocutor,

But General Musharraf, contradicted his earlier statements. And |
would like to quote what Pakistan's High Commissioner Ashraf Jahangir
Qazi, has said, at New Dethi. He said, "The meeting would be a good
beginning of successful relatiocns between India and Pakistan. It is going to
be a successful summit, | promise," So aiso, General Musharraf, in
Pakistan, at a press conference, had said, "South Asia must come out of
the pit of poverty ang learn to live in peace and harmony. It is in this spirit
that | have accepted the invitation of the Indian Prime Minister.® Sir, when
and where did he contradict his statemant? it is not a new thing for him 10
contradict or act against his own statement. You may recall that during his
visit to India, India very magnanimously, friendly and even with sentiments
understocd, repainted the haved near Golcha Cinema in old Delhi from
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where General Musharraf and his family migrated after Partition in 1947.
But, actually, the General has abiding and inspiring memorias from his
schoo! days in the Turkish capital, Ankara. After the coup in 1989, in his
first press conference, General Musharraf has idolised Kamal Ata Turk and
also hoped to emulate him. The Jamat-g-islam, in Pakistan, opposed the
secular nature of Ata Turk. That is a different thing. In November, 1899,
during his one-day visit t0 Ankara, General Musharraf, had lunch with the
chief of protocol, who was his schoolmate, but was an unwelcome guest.
He was not entertained. The Turkish Daily 'Times' $aid that it was an
untimely and an unnecessary visit. Moreover, it said that no coup had
helped any country to solve problems; rather, it had complicated the issues.
Why | am saying this is, because, his role model, Ata Turk, was bom in
Gresce and his family came from Macedonia; Musharraf was born in Dsihi
and his family came from old Uttar Pradesh. His role mode!, Ata Turk, even
neutralised his own old, nationalist, comrades to fulfi his desstiny of
establishing a secular republic in Turkey. Whereas, | am sorry to say,
General Musharraf is riding on the fundamentalist tiger. | should say that
the outcome of the Summit may not be in the form of a declaration or a
joint statement, but, surely, there have been areas in which the two
countries have converged, and this convergence could form the basis for
negotiations in the future. High expectations were Iinharent in the
circumstances in which the Summit was held and it also reflected the
longings of the pecple from both the sides, of the border - not only in India,
but also in Pakistan. Pakistan's highly respected human rights activist and
former Chairman of the Human Rights Commission, Shri A, Rahman, had a
definite view on the Vajpayee-Musharraf Summit. He had said, "Both the
leaders must give a serious thought to signing a 'na-war' declaration to
reduce tension in the region. This would ba the best confidence building
measure betwsen the two neighbours which have fought, so far, three wars
since independence in 1947.° Earlier, tha PML's spokesman
Mr. Mushahidhan Khan, had said, "The people of Pakistan and india
sincerely desire a peaceful solution to the Kashmir issue, and the Lahore
Declaration was a practical step towards achieving this goal. But General
Musharrat sabotaged it through the military revoft of October 12, 1999." The
people in Pakistan as well as the peopie in india are for peace, and it was
the ambition or intention of our Government to achieve the goal. The
sudden insistence ¢f Pakistan that progress in all other areas will be held
hostage to the prograss in solving the Kashmir problem made India to
stiffen its position.
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Sir, wa should think another reason for the disappointing outcome
is that Pakistan's refusal even to reccgnise the cross-border terrorism,
which was abetted and assisted by it; and let alone taking any action to
reduce or to stop it.... We know it very well that the Pakistan's support to
the Kashmiri cause is not out of its interest or genuine concern for human
nghts. 1t is an irony thal Pakistan's military estabiishments talk about self-
determination of the Kashmiri people, while they are not letting their
160 million people not to determine their own will in their own country. [t is
highly ridiculous. To begin with, India is not a foreign power in Kashmir.
| would again like to quote, Oven Dickson and Jose Cobalus, Members of
United Nation's Committee on India and Pakistan, that is, the UNCIP, said,
"The mere technicality of holding a plebiscite seemed beyond scope of
reality.” And, on whether a plebiscite offered a solution to the Kashmir
problem, the UNCIFP representative said, "They were discouraged by the
experiences in Europe with plebiscite.” Moreover, it is also said that the UN
General Assembly believed that the right to self-determination upheld only to
the people under colonial domination by foreign countries,  Sir, where
comes the question of self-delermination. India is not a foreign power in
Kashmir. The accession has never been doubted internationally. Rather,
accepting the compiaint of India in 1948, the UN had adopted the first part
of the Security Council resolution and accepted the accession of Kashmir
with India - and nobody can deny the right - Kashmir is an integral part of
India, in which neither Musharrat nor the APHC, which claims to have a hold
on it. or having a representation qually, can have a say in this because
Incha and Kashmir are one. | would like {o recall,- guring 1947, when an
army was set in force on road to Srinagar from Pakistan, Pandit Nehruji, in
those days, got aroused and fuelled with emotions, told Mt. Batten, "As
Calais is carved in the heart of Queen Mary, so Kashmir is in our heart”. |
saw the same note, when Dr. Karan Singh spoke here yesterday. And it is
a common note which all of us are having here. | think, there can be no
doubt, cutting across all parly lines, we all have to stand in one ling,
Mcreover, what | would request to the Opposition parties is, "Kindly don‘t
see who is in Treasury Benches. Just see the problem, which is the main
issue. Who are affected?  Just remove the political glasses and see with
the natural vision of national interest. Then, you woulid be able to see and
realise the real scene." . Sir, apart from being exploited, the peopie of
Kashmir are being secured with article 370 of the Constitution, which
accords the State a special status.  In fact, this is the real situation.
Jammu & Kashmir stands as a symbol of secularism, where there are three
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major religions and four major languages. Sir, the Tashkent Pact was
signed in 1966 between Lal Bahadur Shashtriji and Ayub Khan after giving
up the strategic heights in Jammu & Kashmir and the seige of Lahore. The
Simla Agreement was signad in July, 1972 between Mrs. Gandhi and Bhutto,
by way of releasing 90,000 prisoners of war. The Lahore Agreement, signed
in February, 1999, between Atalji and Nawaz Sharief, opened a new chapter.
The ‘bus diplomacy' between Delhi and Lahore started a new era in the
relationships of india and Pakistan. The Agra Summit, which was named as
a 'retreat’, was not understood by many, in its real sense.

It was a retreat after the Kargil war to the quiet state of discussion
and that was a steady path. Sir, | had my own doubts about the word
'retreat'. Even our External Affairs Minister, who knows much about it, has
spoken about it, | referred the dictionary. The word 'retreat’ generally
means, a person getting back from his position. How can it be? Even
during the Republic Day parade, the second day parade is czlled as a
retreat parade, that means, the army during the sunset plays a music which
is called a retreat music - so also, anybody who retreats from a place of
confusion or something else to a quiet place; and, so aiso, the Agra Summit
was called as a retreat. It was misunderstood rather not understood
properly by many pecple. All summits, even when they succeed, are only a
partial success. The degree of success depends only on the follow-up of
aclions. No single summit can solve all the issues between the two
countries. India has not yielded; it has not given up its position. Thanks
to the diplomacy of our hon. Prime Minister angd our Minister for External
Affairs - thanks to his efforts which he took during the Kargil war. He
convinced the whole world that incursion was only because of Pakistan,
That helped us to come out successfully and made Pakistan to get out of
the Kargil. That is why, we still repose our confidence in them.  Kashmir,
which just evoked strong emotions today, - 'the paradise on earth’ - has
almost gone into a hell. | would like to submit to the Minister of External
Affairs, who is here as a representative of the whole Government, that
Kashmir, of which we hear much, is dying an untimely death though it took
hundred years to evolve. If we delve deep into the history, we would realise
how that Valley was converted into a paradise on earth by the sufis and the
saints; but now, what we see there. This place, this Valley, this paradise is
in the hands of fanatics and terrorists and we have to save the people.
All these measures and having talks with Pakistan without shedding a drop
of blood, were attempt to solve the issue - they are welcome - but, at the
same time, | would say that a prolenged thinking will not help the people of
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Kashmir. | would iike to say only one thing said by the Shakespsare in
Hamiet, the great Hero in his famous soliloguy: To be or not to be; that is
the question, whether it is nobler to face the slings and arrows of the
outrageous fortune or to raise arms against a sea ol troubles! That
procastination led Hamlet into a tragic hero. | expect this Govemment o act
fastly, to take stern decision and you can take, and | hope the Congress
Party or any other opposition party, not only in this House, but also all over
the country, will extend their support in settling the Issue, the buming
problem in Kashmir to save the lives of the people, to settls the dispute
betwean Pakistan and India. |, on behalf of my party and as an ally affirm
our faith in you and owe our allegiance to you iIn this regard. Thank you.

SHR! KAPIL SIBAL (Bihar) : Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir, it Is my
privilege to participate in this Short Duration Discussion on the Agra Summit,
Sir, when | think of Lahore and Agra, | am reminded of the fact that today,
we live in a world of images. Substances always left far behind and it is the
image that is before us; that leaves an indelible mark on our memory. And,
when | think of Lahore, | think of a wise statesman with a sense of
generosity, goodwill, riding a bus to Lahore. At Waga, getting off in the
hope that the hands of friendship will ba ctasped.

Then, there is the Image of a big hug by the Prime Minister and a
statement at the Minar-e-Pakistan that, ‘we would like a prosperous
Pakistan be to our neighbour.' That is the spirit with which our hon, Prime
Minister went to Lahore. His mindse! was not attuned to the mindset of
those on the other side. And what did we *get in retun? Instead of
friendship, we got betrayal; instead of clasping our hands, they stabbed us
in the back. Those are the images of Lahore, and | amn swe, they are
stched equally in the Prime Minister's mind. But, at Lahore, at least,
somebody stabbed us in the back. At Agra, we have the image of the
Prime Minister being stabbed openly. What happened at Agra? The
mindset of the other side continued to be the same. The rhetoric that was
uttered by President Musharraf before he came to Agra reflected the
mindset of the other side, and yet we continued with a sense of Ignorance,
in the hope that something will come about, and it is that that | am
saddened by. In fact, Shri Dina Nath Mishraji has just accepted it in his
staternent. He said 'therse was no expectation of anything coming out of it;
that it was a success, because nothing happened'. That is what he said.
"‘Before Musharraf came®, he sald, "We knew nothing woud happen, and
after he left, nothing happened.” Whereas, Sushmaji yesterday tatked about
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the masterstroke of diplomacy. How? She said -- and it is very
interesting what she said -- "Tha message sent to President Musharral was
polite language, tough message.” | wondered what she was talking about
because, throughout the proceedings of the Agra Summit, we never heard
the Prime Minister speak. What was that language? Maybe, it was body
janguage, which we are not aware of. And, what was that message? While
Musharraf, the garrdlous Musharraf, was making one statement after
another, our side was quiet for 48 hours. | wondered what that political,
tough, message was that Sushmaji was talking about. But, anyway, let me
tell you of the mindset of Pakistan, which should have been known to the
Government. | go back to the mindset, as reflected in a statement by
Sheikh Abdullah in the Sacurity Council on 5" of February, 1948, and then |
will give you the mindset of today. And you are talking about Kashinir, He
said, "Pakistan had no interest in our liberation, or, it would not have
opposed our freedom struggle movement. Pakistan would have supported
us when thousands of my countrymen ware behind bars, and hundreds
were shot to death. The Pakistani leaders and Pakistani papers were
heaping abuse upon the pecple of Kashmir., Then, suddenly, Pakistan
comes befcre the Bar of the world as the champion of tha liberty of the
people of Jammu & Kashmir. | had thought all along that tha world had got
rid of Hitlers and Goebbels. But from what has happened and what is
happening to my poor country, | am convinced that they have only
transmigrated their souls into Pakistan." This was the mindset of the
Pakistanis in 1948.

And see what is the mindset today? Just before the Summit took
place, a former ISI Chief, Hamid Gui, said in a Pakistani newspaper. and |
quotse:

"I believe that india cannot live as a political entity, as it s tooay.
It has to be fragmented.”

The mindset of the Pakistanis has not changed for the iast 50
years, and there is no expectation that their mindset would change. Then
why this innocance? Why this inefficiency? It is in that context that the
Congress Party had been saying, 'knowing them you ought to have had a
dialogue before you called the Summit.' The Leader of the Opposilion
raised that issue. You were totally unpreparad. You don't have a summit
uniess you have a dialogue., And the response was: "No, no, Gen.
Musharraf did not want it. In fact, the Ministry of External Affairs wrote
saying: what should be our agenda? There was no response from
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President Musharraf. And, yet he was allowed to come and have a field
day at Agral

Sir, Agra was the fourth peace initiative of this Government, starting
from Lahore; and each peace initiative has resulted in failure. The first one
was at Lahore. You know that. | do not have to teil you about it. And
that resulted in Kargil. The second.was the secret talks with the Hurryat. |f
you remember, this Government decided to have a secret talks with the
Hurryat. What happened? They failed. Then came the talks with the
Hizbul Mujahideen. If you remember, our Home Secretary flew to Srinagar,
shook hands with people with masks and tried tc negotiate. And when
Salaluddin made a public statement in Pakistan saying "we have nothing to
do with these talks", the talks fell ihrough.

Then suddenly, on the 18" of November, this country declared a
unilateral cease-fire during Ramzan. That was extended on the 20" of
December; extended again on the 23" of January and, again, on the 20" of
February, 2001. It continued for three months. And what was happening
in the meantime? Innocent lives were being lost in Jammu and Kashmir, In
fact, if you look at the number -- the Home Ministry has those numbers --
the spurt of killings of innocent people in the years 1999, 2000 and 2001,
ever since this Government came to power, have never been so much in
the history of Kashmir. Who is responsible for it? And the hon. Foreign
Minister says at the end of the Summit: “The caravan of peace will
continue to run." A caravan loaded with dead bodies of innocent peopls; a
caravan splattered with the blood of childran! Is that the caravan that you
want 1o continue without thought and without preparations? At least, the
Opposition will not be a party to this.

We want you to have a dialogue with Pakistan, We want you to
resclve the problem with Pakistan. But you must first ensure what are
going 0 be the parameters of the talks. You must ensure what the agenda
is going to be. You must have talks at the official level first. Then, at the
Secretaries-level, then at the Foreign Ministers-level, and only then you
should invite somebody for a summit or go for a summit,

Generosity, munificence, simpliclty are not necessarily virtues in
diplomacy. So far, all our questions remained unanswered because the hon.
" Foreign Minister has mastered the art of not speaking. On 23™ May what
madse turn arcund and lift the unilateral ceasefire that you had imposed?
What happened on the 24™ May, when four honourable men -- | won't call it
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the gang of four -- met and decided to lift the ceasefire without any
consultation with any political party. You have lifted the ceasefire and on
that very day decided to extend an invitation to Gen. Musharraf. Please
disclose to us, what has suddenly happened on 23" May, when you did this
turn around, made this ‘U’ turn? So far, you have not told us anything. Well,
when you did it, you never consulied anybody. And four days before
President Musharraf came to India, you called the Opposition parties to telt
them, "In fact, there is no agenda.” What did you expect the Opposition to
do? Did you expect the Opposition to say, *Withdraw your invitation." is that
the kind of consultation that you want on a matter in which there has been
a bi-partisan policy throughout the history of this country?

Yesterday, Sushmaji very strangely said, "During the talks while
President Musharraf was talking about Kashmir being a core issue, we
wanted to tell the world that Kashmir was not a core issue because that is
the policy of this Government.” May | remind Sushmaji what the Prime
Minister himself said in his musings in Kerala? | guote : “QOur country is
facing many problems that are a legacy of our history...One is the long-
standing problem with Pakistan over Jammu and Kashmir.* The core issue
was stated by cur Prime Minister in Kerala.

SHRI SANGH PRIYA GAUTAM (Uttaranchal) : That is one thing.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: No. In Kerala he talked of two issues which are
outstanding on which there should be a resoclution, The one was Ram
Janmabhoomi, Ayocdhya. | quote: "One is the long-standing problem with
Pakistan over Jammu and Kashmir and the other is the Ram Janmabhoomi-
Babri Masijid dispute at Ayodhya." Who has stated that Jammu and Kashrnir
was the core issue? it was not said by Prasident Musharraf. It was said by
the Prime Minister of India in Kerala, Then, he goes on to say, “india is
willing and ready to seek a lasting sclution to the Kashmir problem...”

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI SURESH PACHOURI): From which
paper are you quoting?

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: | am quoting from the Tribune, dated 2™
January, 2001, !t is an article written Dy Shri Atal Behari Vajpayee. | quote
"India is willing and ready to seek a lasting solution to the Kashmir
problem.” Kashmir problem, admission by the Prime Minister of India that
there is a Kashmir problem; not admitted in Tashkent, not admitted -in
Shimla, not admitted in Lahore, but admitted by the Prime Minister of India,
here, you are the one who are changing the agenda. You are the one who
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are weaning away from the bi-partisan policy of Kashmir. He said, | quote
“Towards this end, we are prepared to recommence talks with Pakistan at
any level ..." If you yourself tell Pakistan that Kashmir is the problem, we are
willing to talk to you, what do you expect President Musharraf {0 say?
Naturally, President Musharraf will say, "Please come, | want to tatk about
Kashmir.* When he talked about Kashmir, Sushmaiji says, "No,. no, why talk
about Kashmir? There was no talk about Kashmir.® Gen. Musharraf said,
“Ninety per cent of the talks was about Kashmir,” The Prime Minister said,
"He had a fauji mindset. He was only talking about Kashmir." In Kerala,
Vajpayeeji said, "That is the problem.” Sushmaji says, *No, no, whers is the
problem? There is no Kashmir problem. The real problems are other
problems." .. {nlerruptions)... Let me state the facts.

Then, what does he say? Again, | quote : "Towards this end, we
are prepared to recommence talks with Pakistan at any level, incluging at
the highest level, provided Islamabad gives sufficient proof of its
preparedness to create a conducive atmosphere for a meaningful diaiogue.”
Again, | quote: "In our search for a lasting solution to the Kashmir problem
both in its external and internal dimensions, we shafl not traverse solely on
the beaten track of the pasl.” Surprising. Sushmaji says, the Foreign
Minister says, the Prime Minister says, "The track of the past is the Shimia
Agreement, the Tashkent Declaration, the Lahore Declaration. We can go
forward only on that path.* That is what they say to the public, What is
this? They don't want to traverse only on the beaten track of the past. What
is the new path that you want to adopt? Certainly, the path to failure which
you have adopted. Now, if you yourself call Kashmir as the core issue, the
problam on which you want to talk, you cannot biame President Musharraf
on that.

Then, what happens after the talks are over? The hon., Foreign
Minister says that the caravan of peace must go on, What does the
spokesperson of the External Affairs Ministry say? He said, “The Summit
should be rubbished in the dustbin of history.” Who was talking for whom?
In fact, if | remind you, the moment, the Agra Summit collapsed, the
spokesrnan claimed that was a great disappointment. The following morning,
the Minister says, "It was a success.” He further says, "We must pick up
the threads from where the President of Pakistan, Gen. Musharraf left."
Later on, the Government feels that the Summit failed, There was no Agra
deciaration. There was no joint declaration. Then, they say, “Okay, we will
go back to the Shimla Agreement, we wil go back to the Lahore
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Declaration.” The fact of the matter is, Sir, -- this is something which | want
to state on the fioor of the House --

{(THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN in the Chair)

if 1 have not got the dates wrong, | think, it was on Monday, 18" June,
2001, that Mr, Fleischer, the official spokesman of the White House said in
the White House, and | quote . *The United States fully supports the
upcoming July l4th meeting betwean India and Pakistan* At this time,
Vajpayeeji was in the hospital. The dates have not been fixed, Mr, Fleischer
said that he supporls the upcoming July lath meeting. The world did not
know about it. We were lold by the United States. On Isth June, the next
day, which was Tuesday, the Prime Minister came out of the hospital. We
had prayed {0 God that he had a successiul operation which he had. When
he was asked a question on this, what did he say? He said, "It will take me
a couple of days to finalise the Summit dates.”

Now, we know, Sir, why on 23" May you made a ‘U’ turn.
THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, it is Madam.
SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Sorry. | apologise.
THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Coup takes place very quistly.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: So, Madam, now we know why a ‘U' turn took
place on 23" May. You have been prodded, you have been told. In fact, the
MEA spokesperson in a report published in Redif dot com said, "The
United States was wanting 1o lift sanctions.” Then, | quote: "Conditional to
verifiable forward movement by the two sub-continenta! neighbours on
Kashmir."

This was the scenario. You had no choice in the matter. You were
pressurized by the international community, particWarly, the U.S., that look,
show some forward movement, | am not saying that the Pakistanis were
not. They too were. That is why both of you talked of the beaten track. Sir,
in any talk at this level, there must be something you can give; there must
be something that the other side can give. But look at it from your own
point of view. The Foreign Minister has said that =¥R figwam & age am
% Under the Constitution, Kashmir is a part of india. How can | think of the
Constitution? Yes, he is right. So is Kashmir an integral part of india, which
it is. What do you want to negotiate? And | would like to refer 10 what
Presidsnt Musharraf has said. " If | accept the Line of Controt as the border,
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| will have to stay in my haveli at Delhi. | cannot go back to Pakistan." This
is the mindset of two sovereign nations, who want to come together, to find
a solution., The problem is, if you go into a solution like this, without a
change of mindset, then not only will there be failure, but the failure will be
at the cost of the people of Kashmir. 1 don't mind, and | think that it is
good that despite everything, Musharraf came, It is fine, and hopefully, you
will go to Lahore, though, on that, | am going to say something just now.
But the fact is that in the process, you are sacrificing the lives of those
people, who have no communication with you in Jammu and Kashmir. Thay
are pawns in your hands. | am sorry to say so. You are using them, without
understanding the ground reality, You had the Teheika episcde here. You
have the economic downturn, you have spurt of terrorism, you have
domestic problems facing you within the coalition partnership,. You knew
that the Session was going to start on July 23°, 2001. You knew it. You
said: “Let us hope for something, just a few days before the Session, so
that the attention of the whole nation can be diverted away from the real
issues that face us." And see the double talk. The Prime Minister says that
he is going t¢ go back to Lahore, because, President Musharral has
extended an invitation, and he will go back to Lahore. And immediately
thereafter, in the National Executive meeting of the BJP, what does he say?
What is the point of going back to Lahore if there is going to be cross-
border terrorism? You satisfied the hawks in your party. You play around
with the lives of the people of Kashmir and you cali Agra Summit a success.
If you call the increasing viclence and the loss of innocent lives, because of
the failure of talks, a success, then, let it be a success. But history will
never forgive you for the inaptitude, lack of thought and the lack of foresight
that you have shown in this parlicular matter. Madam, | want tc make a
very important statement here, connecled with the statement of the US
Spokesperson. If you remember, Mr, Mishra and the Foreign Minister were
in the United States. They were going to and fro before the announcemant
of these talks.

And, Madam, despite the Agra Summit failure, the United States
Department spokasperson, Richard Bush, said this--and | quote:

"We strongly support sustained engagement at the senior level
between India and Pakistan as the best way to address long-
standing bilateral disputes and make real progress towards the
reduction of tension and resolution of their differences through
peaceful means.”
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immediately after the talks failed! Then you have the Assistant
Security of State for South Asian Affairs, Miss Christina Rocca’s message 1o
New Delhi and Islamabad to continue the political level dialogus! And, as
you know, Richard Armitage, the Depuly Secretary of State, came to Delhi
just before the talks took place, just before the invitation! So, we seem to
be moving towards a particular methodology o©f resolving issues at the
instance of somebody elsel As a sovereign power, we have never donge
that in the past. In fact, Madam, | am pained that we are talking about
cross border terrorism on a daily basis. And | am pained. Why? You ook
at our Resolution of 1994, the Resolution of Parliament, on the whole issue.
The moment you talk of cross border terrorism, which is the border you are
talking about? That phrase has come about only after 1994, because in the
Resolution passed by this House on 22™ February, 1994, this is what we
said:

"This House condemns strongly the continued support and
encouragement Pakistan is extending to subversive and terrorist
activities in the Indian State of Jammu and Kashmir.”

Because, we do hot accept the LoC as our border. Pok is a part of India.
it is a misnomer to call it cross border terrorism. It is subversion of the
Indian Union by an outside power, That we will never tolerate. Let that
message go. But, unfortunately, Madam, we have been falling into this trap
and negotiating on the inclusion of the phrase ‘cross border terrorism' with
Musharrafl The issue is not cross border terrorism. The core issug, here, is
not Kashmir, Madam. The core issue is Pakistan. The core issue is the
subversive activities of Pakistan within the Union. That is the core issue;
and unless Musharraf accepts that, there can be no bargain with Musharraf.

And the other issue is the issue between us, ie. the way we have
freated the people of Jammu and Kashmir, and we have to recognise it and
accept it, thalt we have to balm their hurt, take care of themn, educate them,
economically provide them the necessary wherewithal so that they can
stand up high, with dignity, as equal citizens in this country, to be fully
integrated in this country. Madam, the issue is not Kashmir, Let me quote
it in this way, “The issue is Pakistan.” In fact, Madam, Pakistan has declared
a war of a thousand cuts against India. That is the terminology that they use.
"This war of a thousand cuts will continue and lead India to fragmentation!”
Those are the words used by Pakistan! Lat the Pakistanis know that we too
know how to breed an impeccable forcel® And we will find a2 way 10 do that,
if they continue 1o be subversive in our nation. it is better if all of us in this
House unanimously understand the reality of Pakistan.
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There is no point in falling prey to the persuasions of another
power because we want to have the sanctions lifted. We rather live with
ihe sanctions than be persuaded in this fashion.

In fact, Madam, | have almost done it and | am just going to sum
up now. Sushmaji, when she was speaking yesterday, slated that he gave
us a fixed deposit and we returned . The fact is that we gave a blank
cheque to his Government so that, after the Agra talks, they fill something in
it to telt the world that this is what happened and this is how they have
succeeded. But the blank chegue remained blank. Dina Nath Mishraji
stated that it could not have been filled up; there was nothing to fill up. |
don‘t know where the fixed deposit came from. She must be thinking of
some other matter. There wera several fixed deposits. She was surprised
when the Leader of the Opposition and several Members of the Qpposition
were talking about the media management. The Leader of the Opposition
explained, "We did not mean that you should manage the media. What we
meant was that you should interact with the media. Just as Gen. Musharraf
was doing in a breakfast meeting, wa should also have taken steps to
interact with the media®. She expressed innocence about the concept of
management of the media. Bul when | saw the newspapers this moming, |
realised that she was a master at it; she was a master in media
management. It is a master stroke that a speech full of sound and fury,
signifying nothing, was managed beautifully in the media.

Madam, this is what | would like the Government to answer. The
point is that we have reached at crossroads. We must decide what is it
that we want {0 negotiate with Pakistan on Jammu and Kashmir, We have
seen the spurt of kilings in Doda. In fact, in recent days the killings have
gone up much more than ever in the past. This is a direct result of the
failure of the talks at Agra. In the meeting with the leaders of the
Opposition parties, | was told, it was pointed out that if somehow the Agra
talks failed, it was going to have an adverse impact. | was toid that the
Foreign Minister said, "No, we are on top of the situation*. Well, Mr.
Ministar, you are certainly not on top of anything at the moment. Forget
Jammu and Kashmir, you are not on top of anything. But, at the same
time, you cannot change your neighbour as you have been saying, time and
again. We have to negotiate with our neighbour. But before you negotiate,
before you actually go to Lahore, please decide in your mind what you want
to do. Let Gen. Musharraf decide in his mind what he wants to do. But
you decide in your mind what is it that you can give and what is it that you
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want to have. In the absence of that, the result is another summit, another
failure, another host of killings in Jammu & Kashmir. Don't put the people
of Jammu and Kashmir through this tragedy because history will never
forgive you. Thank you very much.

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | have to inform the House that the
Home Minister was to come at 2 o'clock, but he is still replying in the Lok
Sabha and is on his legs. We will continue with the discussion till he
comes here with regard to the statement on the kilings in Jammu and
Kashmir. We are still having a lot of speakers and the time left is two hours
and forty minutes. We should finish the discussion today so that the hon.
Prime Minister can reply tomorrow after Question Hour. So, we will
continue with the discussion. Shri Jnaneshwar Misra.
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il Tax fyw . Aeq, 3511 o foam & & A o firre 4 aof am e
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SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD (Bihar): Madam Deputy
Chairperson,...

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If the Home Minister aggress, thsn wa
will allow Shri Ravi Shankar Prasad because he has already started. After
that we will take up the statement by the hon. Home Minister
...{nterruptions)... It will take ten or fifteen minutes...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Madam, | am grateful to you for
giving me this opportunity. Madam, since yesterday | am hearing speaker
after speaker particularly from the Opposition on this discussion. | heard
Dr. Manmohan Singhiji, | heard Kapil Sibalji and | heard Shri Janeshwar
Mishraji. We have also been in Opposition from time to time. But we have
never sought to make any comment which may De used by those across
the border. What | heard vesterday and today, let me say, it may be
music to thé ruling establishment in Pakistan. Mr. Kapil Sibal talked about
Kerala musing of the Prime Minister, quoting only one part of it, without
emphasising when he stated that there must be a conducive atmosphere.
Was it not in the same language which Musharraf is talking out, the
centricity of Kashmir what Mr. Kapil Sibal talkked about? w=ixax fiysr ot anf
#g 2 9 fF o @ 8 9 ofge o argw 3w ) s f aadla | @17 I
9E 4 T8 Fg | 3M FEA & P WER UF I Q, AW AGT Fwd £ F IR
wge Asdiarell gacll § 9 IF, 7 WA U8 & @, R e oft A qadia I
ggdl &1 af angd 39 o +ff tawrw &1 Much has béen talked about as to what
was the gain from the Agra Summit, Let me ask you certain questions.
Was it not for the first time that India did not lose even an inch on the
Summit table? When Musharraf talked about Kashmir being the core issua,
was it not for the first time that the Prirmme Minister very strongly, but in a
dignified manner, said, "Yes, if you talk about Kashmir being the core issue,
we will have to go nto the core of that core, ie., your illegal accupation of Azad
Kashmir what Mr, Kapil Sibal talked about? Was it not for the first tims that the
Indian Prime Minister said, "How is it that when Pakistan could subjugate the
wish of the Azad Kashmir pecple they could talk about the wish of the Kashmiri
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people what he talked about? When Mr, Musharraf came 10 bid farewell taking
cue from what Mr. Bhutto did to Smt. indira Gandhi, he cajoled, he requested,
he persisted for an agreement. But what Atalji said was this, "Sorry, you have
spoiled the entire atmosphere.® Al this we can talk about; if diplomacy means
talking about the country's interests, with salf-prige, it was the moment.

Dr. Manmohan Singh talked about Pokhran and lack of consistancy
and coherence in our foreign policy. What happened in Pokhran-II? India
was isolated with sanctions. We never made any compromise. We never
begged before any world power to lift the sanctions Imposed on us. We
never submitted ourselves to the various treaties which were sought to be
imposed on us. And, even today, India has not compromised, But, Mr.
Sibal, you have talked about the American pressure. One of the first terms
of the sanctions is that there shall be no miltary engagement. Ang,
recantly, Jaswant Singhji had gone to America, as the Defence Minister. He
was invited to Pentagon also. Here was a military-to-military contact at the
highest level, with the sanctions in place, which we never begged to
withdraw. | think, your entire argument, that this whole Initiative has been
taken under pressure, is absolutely misplaced, It is a part of our conviction
that we must live in peace with our neighbours. Madam, Advaniji met Mr,
Musharraf, and told him, TR TSy WEE & aftag & fHifg, v wala &
Tifta ox @afRm|* The reply was, "Mr. Home Minister, you are becoming
tactical. Dawood Ibrahim is not here.* | have got an interview of Chota
Shakeel in ingia Today of 6" August, which | would like to quote. In that
interview, he said, "¥® W w# g W & W 41" And that is his saying.
What has been the gain from the Agra Summit? For the first time, the real,
cruel, diplomatic face of Pakistan is there before the world. Mr. Musharraf
said, "} am a commando." Madam, commandoc has got the spirit of
daredevilry and courage; but two qualities more -- delusion and deception.
Mr. Sibal talked about cross-border terrorism. He asked cross-border
terrorism is a concept very well understood, then why did you go in for
talks? Initially, we had said that we would not go. But, in two years' time,
because of the consistent efforts of the Government of India, the world has
recognised our concerns over this cross-border terrorism and, Madam, let
mée quots from the Report of Patterns of Global Terrorism, published by the
U.S. State Departmcnt, and released on 30" April, 2001. | just quote only
two lines from this Report. [t says, "Pakistan military Government, headed
by General Pervez Musharraf, continued previous Pakistani Government
support of Kashmir insurgency and Kashmir militant groups continue to
operate in India." There is also a Report of the Canadian Security and
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Intelligence Services, dated June 20, 2001, and, again, | quote from this
Report. it says, "Pakistan’'s long-standing support 10 extremists is a major
factor in its endurance. The effect of on-going support by Pakistani
Intelligence apparatus to the Jammu and Kashmir conflict, with its growing
linkage with Taliban, has spilled into East Asian expatriate communities
around the world." Firstly, during the last two years, we have been able to
show to the world that Pakistan, today, exports terrorism., And what is the
face of Pakistan which has come before the world, at Agra? Secondly,
earlier, Jehad was on the fringe of Pakistan polity. Today, Jehad has
become the core of Pakistani army which rules there, Pakistan exports
terrcrism as a tool of diplomacy. These are the two issues, Mr. Sibal. We
agree on many things.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: If you are saying that, why did you call him?
..fintarruptions)...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: You also said that there has to be
a continuous dialogue ...fInterruptions)... Angd this became the occasion.
There was unanimity also. What | am simply trying to say is that Pakistan
exports terrorismm, Pakistan supports terrorism, and Pakistan supports,
openly, Jehad. Agra was the conclusive demonstration of that, and that |
see ... finterruptions). ..

SHR! KAPIL SIBAL: Are you saying that it has come 1o project itself
as a terrorist State? ...finterruptions)...

SHRI  RAVI GHANKAR PRAGAD: Le! us not go into
that..finterruptions)... Please, ves..(Interruptions)... That is dipiomacy. If you
understand it correctly, it is a part of diplomacy to safeguard its national
interest. Today, Sir... M™Madam, Vice-Chairperson, | wish to cite
..(rterruptions}...

AN HON. MEMBER: Deputy Chairperson, not Vice-Chairperson.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Deputy Chairperson. | stand
corrected. If Mr. Kapil Sibal can call you 'Sir' so many times, one mistake
may be aliowed to ma.

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: He is a lawyer and you are a lawyer.
You can.... {nterruptions)..,
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SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: One second, if you hear me.
Jinterruptions)... One second, if you yield, ..{nisrruptions)...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR FPRASAD: Allow me to conclude.
..jnterruptions)... We will settle it in the court. . (finterruptions)... We will
settls it in the court, Kapilji.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: You belisva in...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Pleass allow me to speak. | am
not yielding.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Doesn't matter.

THE DOEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | thought you were giving an
explanation of why you called me 'Sir'.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASA[D: Madam, General Musharraf said,
"I is a freedom struggle, we are not supporting it, and it is indigenous. |
am giving certain evidence in this House. | saw what was the address of
Harkat-ul-Mujahideen, on its website. It Is: Head Office, House No.B-154,
Khyban Sir Sayyad, Near GDA Bus Stop, Rawalpindi, Pakistan. Current
Account No. 2758, Muslim Commercial Bank, Alfara Branch, Islamabad,
Pakistan. Mr. Musharraf, are you listening? The Head Office of Harkat-ul-
Muiahideen is in Istamabad. Madam, iet me quotae. ‘Herald' is the monthly
magazine of the ‘Dawn' group of newspapers. [n its March issue, in an
article, Or. Khalid Mahmud, Secretary-General of Jamaitul-islame of Sind had
made a very telling comment. Let me quote that. He said, *"Why is the
Pakistani Army not fighting for Kashmir? Why are they getting our youth
killed there? They are using our youngmen for their own goals." Let us be
clear about one thing. These Jehadi groups cannot function and survive
without official patronage. s there a -single militant training centre in
Pakistan which can operate without the consent of the Pakistani Army?
Madam, we have heard a lot about Kadam Sethi, a well known journalist of
Pakistan. He had written in ‘Friday Times' on the 8™ of May, 2001, "The
Musharraf mode! seeks to covertly ally with the Jehadi groups, while
keeping the mainstream political parties out of power loop. This is to
enhance and sustain his covert external agenda, white internally maintaining
an overtly fundamentalist stand”. Madam, this brings me to the wvery
rationale of Pakistan. Fifty years have passed by and, at least, on this
assessment, Mr. Kapil Sibal and myself have a lot of unanimity. It is yet to
grow out of anti-india hatred. The two-nation theory has failed. Pakistan
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has this idea that only it has got the right to talk about the Muslims of India.
And | salute the tolerance of india. | salute the secular traditions of India.
Today, the Muslims have shown that they are safe in this country. Pakistan
was defeated a number of times and Pakistan learnt that, as a country it
cannot defeat India. Therefore, it must try to bleed India; it must go for a
proxy war. And if Pakistan has not succeeded in the past, Pakistan is not
going to succeed in the future also. But cne thing is there, We would
have to be firm on our guards and we would have to clearly demonstrate
that Pakistan wouid never succeed in this proxy war, and the entire country
is onga. When | see discordant voices there, | have a little problem. | have
great regard for Shri Janeshwar Mishraji, for his vision and his
understanding. But when he says that people must meet, | would only say
that his idea is utopian, without any relation to the existing reaiity. And the
existing reality of Pakistan, today, Madam, is that Pakistan is ruled by a
psyche, by a mindset, which has yet tc come to terms with india. That
mindset has 10 go. We wish Pakistan very well. Pakistan has seen
democracy, followed by coup. Elected leaders went to jails. That is their
problem. But this mindset has always survived. | learnt from the reporting
of Pakistan that the Director-General of IS! had gone to0 a conference of
Lashkar-e-Toiba. A resolution was passed there that, “Like Mohd. Gaznawt,
we have to show India, its true place, and let us try for that.," Such types
of resolutions, supported by officlal patronage, would never be healthy for a
conducive atmosphere., Yet, Jaswant Singhji had made a very important
quotation in a memorial lecture at Patna, Madam. ...(nterruptions)...

SHRI NILOTPAL BASU (West Bengal) : Madam, can | make a
procedural point?

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Yes.

SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: As per thse time allotted to the parties, it
was decided in the morning that we would try to shorten this debate so that
the Prime Minister can reply to the debate tomorrow morning at 12 o'clock.

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: | am concluding ...§nterruptions)...

SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: | think, in the House, the Government has
the biggest responsibility to stick to that agreement ...{nterruptions)...

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | will tell you. He is about to finish his
speech. Then, he is speaking within the time allotted to the BJP. When he
finishes, then the hon. Home Minister will ...{nferruptions)...
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SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: If the Chair is satisfied, then we are alsc
satisfied...(nterruptions)...

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, don't make everything political.
It was a comment on the Chair...{nterruptions)...

SHRI B.P. APTE {Maharashtra) : Madam ...{Interruptions)

IuAuafY . i o dfdw gEm dwfeg #a Aigv | OE oY oW ¥ dTAR
1 frea &

Mt vorAmg fy *yqd® (SR wdv) . few, A Rk o fwd w9 ¥ fag
o @ & 3w o Tl X1 ...(aEae)..

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Just cne minute. May ! have your
attention please? Mr. Basu, you said, 'if the Chair is satisfied, we are also
satisfied’. 1t is not a question of my satisfaction; it is a question of
Members® satlisfaction, because | have no role to play in the satisfaction
part. Mr. Kapil Sibal took more time; ) think, your party took enough time,
S0, if he has his party's time, he is within his limit. That is the point. H is
not a question of my satisfaction...{merruptions)...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Madam, should | continue?
...gnterruptions)...

SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: Madam, the only thing is that we had
decided 1o sit late and that we would seek extra time; but, everybody will
“have to stick to that time. | mean, | cannot take responsibility for Shri Kapil
Sibal, but, at lsast, surely, the hon. Minister of Parliamentary Affairs,
...intarruptions)... who was also present during that discussion, should take
responsibility ...{nterruptions)...

SHRI B.P. SINGHAL (Uttar Pradesh) : There is no room for further
arguments .. {nterruptions)...

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Singhal, you don't have to be angry.
You took ong more minute beyond your time. So, | don't want to quote.
And, now, you have taken two-three more minutes. So, let us not sit like a
'balance’. Let him finish,

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Madam, | was saying that in spite
of knowing everything about Pakistan, we cannot change our gsography. !t
is the geography which has made Pakistan our next-docr neighbour,
howsoever we are in disagreement with the 'two-naticn' theory. In fact, it
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has failed today. How the Mohajirs have been treated; how the people of
Sindh have been treated; what is the fate of Baluchistan; what treatment
was given to the people of East Bengal, ie. Bangladesh. The entire history
of Pakistan is there for us to see. What is happening to the Ahmedias in
Pakistan? They talk of democratic rights. Madam, | am coming to the last
point. Much was talked about the media part; media managerment and
media interaction. | have only one comment to make about the great
breakfast meeting, | have with me the article of Mr. Prem Shankar Jha, in
the 'Outlook' dated 30" July, where he says "Let me start by saying,
without qualification, that what Musharrat did was grossly unethical. The
meeting was, like such meetings all over the world, off the record. What's
mora, we were there not because we asked to meset him but as he wanted
to meet us. S0, it was incumbent upon him to tell us that the meeting was
not only on record but was to be televised. Neither before nor during the
meeating wera we told of the change.® Mr, Sibal, do you want that our
Prime Minister should also behave in the same fashion?

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL : No, ...{nterruptions)...

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Let me put this guestion. You
talked about the media part ...{nterruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL. SIBAL : if he puls a question to me ...(nterruptions)...
| am suposed to answer that .. {nterruptions)...

SHRi RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: All right, all right ...{nterruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL : Either you withdraw your question, or allow
me to answer it ...{nterruptions)...

SHRt RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD: Come on. Come on
...{Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Are you withdrawing it ...{nterruptions)... eilther
withdraw it or allow me to answer it, ...(nlsrruptions)...

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : He is not in the Chair, So, he can
neither allow you nor withdraw it ., ¢nlerruptions)... Neither Shri Nilotpal
Basu is there in the Chair ...¢nterruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL : Madam, ! would like to respond to his
question ...{nterrtiptions)...

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : Let him finish now,
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SHRI RAWVI SHANKAR PRASAD : Madam, | am not vyislding
«{nterruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL : Why are you worried? | will say something in
your favour ...{fnterruplions)...

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : i think, there are far too many lawyers
in this House, We should have more politicians in this House
.griterruptions)....

SHR! RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD : | was saying that there were
certain norms of diplomatic discourse and conduct. And, if Mr. Musharraf
..jnterruptions). ..

THE DEFPUTY CHAIRMAN : Please conclude,

SHRI RAVI SHANKAR PRASAD :.met the Prass to violate it, we
should not be asked to follow it.

Madam, lastly, | would only say, the discussions must go on, 1t is
a bold step. But, at least, in the future, as far as the media part is
concerned, Pakistan should be told to decide as lo what shall be the
parameters ol media interaction. 'You did not do that in Shimla, you did
not do that in Lahore also -- though tefevisicn was there. You flouted that
in Agra, hence decide it befare hand." | am deeply gratefut for giving me
the tima, Thank you, Madam,

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Now, we have the statement by the
hon. Home Minister regarding the recent incidents of kilings in Jammu &
Kashmir,

STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION ON RECENT INCIDENTS OF KILLINGS
IN JAMMU AND KASHMIR

THE MINISTER OF HOME AFFAIRS (SHRI L.K. ADVAN!): Madam,
Deputy Chairman, the Members are well aware that terrorist groups in
Jammu & Kashmir have continuously showed total disregard for the yearning
for peace and normalcy on the parl of the people of Jammu & Kashmir, and
did not respond positively to the Government's unilateral Ramazan peace
initiative.

Following the withdrawal of Non Initiation of Combat operations, the
security forces have stepped up operations against the terrorists, Significant
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